
 
 

July 30, 2014 
 
 
Dear STEHP Applicant: 
 
 Enclosed is a compilation of questions submitted in response to the Solutions To End 
Homelessness Program (STEHP) Request for Proposals (RFP).  We encourage you to thoroughly read the 
questions and responses as they provide clarity on topics raised by prospective applicants. 
 
 As the application deadline approaches, we want to take this final opportunity to remind you of 
some significant factors related to proposals submitted under STEHP.    
 

1. The application deadline is 9:00 pm August 18, 2014.  The Grants Gateway helpdesk is 
operational between the hours of 8am and 8pm Monday – Friday.  Contact information 
for Grants Gateway assistance is as follows: 1-800-820-1890 
helpdesk@agatesoftware.com 

2. All responses and requested uploads for the application should be submitted in Grants 
Gateway.  An applicant will receive a Global Error message if submitting an incomplete 
application. 

3. In order to submit the finished application, the applicant must be logged in as a Grantee 
Signatory or Grantee System Administrator role.  (Note: A single person may have more 
than one role in the Grants Gateway.) Please review the instructions about how to 
submit the application in the Grants Gateway section of the Question and Answer 
document.  There are screen shots that show exact steps to submit the application.   

4. OTDA encourages prospective applicants to finish the application and submit it well 
before the deadline.  It is recommended that applicants allow sufficient time to check 
for errors as described in the Grants Gateway section of the Question and Answer 
document. Common errors potential applicants may receive are not answering required 
questions or not uploading required documents.   
 

OTDA looks forward to receiving applications that meet local needs and propose innovative 
solutions to homelessness. 

Sincerely, 
 

Laura Zavala and Sarah Watson 
STEHP Program Managers 
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SOLUTIONS TO END HOMELESSNESS PROGRAM (STEHP) 
2014 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
QUESTION AND ANSWER DOCUMENT 

Correction 

Page 27 of the RFP: the 6th bullet under “General Guidelines for Navigating the Grants Gateway” should 

read, “pages 27-31” instead of “pages 25-29.”   Please refer to these pages (27-31) of the RFP as a guide 

for completing the screens from the forms menu in Grants Gateway.  

Grants Gateway Questions 

Q: Will OTDA be providing a fillable application? Is the application actually in grants gateway? 

A: OTDA has made full use of the Grants Gateway system for the STEHP RFP.  Applicants should apply for 

the STEHP opportunity in Grants Gateway. Pages 27 – 31 of the RFP give general instructions for getting 

started and completing screens.  

Q: I can find the STEHP opportunity, the button says download grant opportunity, (not apply for 

opportunity), and when I click the blue download opportunity button I just get a pdf of the RFP. What 

am I doing wrong? 

A: Potential applicants must be signed in as a Grantee, Grantee Contract Signatory or Grantee System 

Administrator in order to view the “Apply for Opportunity” button.  Applicants that are unable to see 

the “Apply for Opportunity” button are most likely signed in as a Delegated Administrator, a role that 

can’t apply for opportunities. Once logged in under the correct role, applicants should click “Available 

Opportunities” to initiate an application.  Applicants having further questions may contact the helpdesk 

for technical assistance at 1-800-820-1890 or helpdesk@agatesoftware.com  

Q: I am in the process of going over the STEHP RFP, and was wondering if you had a Microsoft Word 

version of the proposal questions, or if one will be available on the OTDA website/Grants Gateway soon. 

A: No, a Word version will not be made available. All responses should be submitted through the Grants 

Gateway system.  

Q: Can [Agency] be a sub-contractor on one application – collaborating with two other agencies  AND 

have our own separate (independent) application?  

A: Yes, as long as services are not duplicated among applications.  Applicants may be a sub-contractor on 

one STEHP application and then submit their own STEHP proposal.  Please be aware of the award limits 

to any one agency on pages 20 and 21 of the RFP. 

Q: Our organization (which is a legal 501(c)3 nonprofit entity that has been pre-qualified with the state) 

has programs in multiple geographic areas throughout the state.   We would like to submit separate 

applications for STEHP funding for our emergency shelters that are located in two separate cities, 

because we believe that separate applications will enable us to answer the questions about the 

community, specific needs/gaps, the operation of the Continuum of Cares (CoCs) and their priorities, 
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and our programs with more clarity.  Each application would still be under our one legal name and the 

pre-qualification/document vault would be the same for each application.   Can we submit separate 

applications under the same name for different programs in different cities?  

Q: Can an agency submit more than one STEHP application through the Grants Gateway? 

A: OTDA is aware that some national not-for-profits may have multiple locations in New York State but 

are established in Grants Gateway as one entity and have one document vault.  Furthermore, OTDA 

recognizes that such entities may have one State Financial System (SFS) number.  Therefore, OTDA will 

accept multiple applications from one Grants Gateway registered agency; however the provisions of the 

STEHP RFP with regard to award limits described on pages 20 and 21 apply to the agency as a whole.  If 

an agency chooses to submit one application for all sites, applicants are encouraged to thoroughly 

respond to each question for each location/site with, the exception of the Budget, which should consist 

of the total grant request.    

Q: On the Project Site Address Screen, the application asks for Regional Council and Agency Specific 

Region.  Our program is located in Kings County in New York City.  What are the Regional Council and 

Agency Specific Region for our location? 

A: Applicants are encouraged to use the drop down selection feature which identifies the Regional 

Council areas as Capital Region, Central New York, Finger Lakes, Long Island, Mid-Hudson, Mohawk 

Valley, New York City, North Country, Southern Tier, or Western New York.  There is an additional drop-

down selection for Agency Specific locations, which include NYC, Nassau/Suffolk/Westchester Counties, 

or Rest of State.   

Q: I am having trouble navigating the Work Plan section of the Grants Gateway system, specifically the 

section regarding the Objectives and Tasks.  The only place I can enter information is under Performance 

Measures.  Do you want all information pertaining to Objectives, Tasks and Performance Measures 

included in this one place?  Or is there another location I am unable to access? 

A: Instructions for the Work Plan section can be found on page 31 of the RFP.  Applicants should select 

the First Additional Outcome or Objective screen.  Click “view/add” under Performance Measures. 

Name the objective in the Performance Measure Name field.  In the Narrative field, please describe the 

significance of the objective, task(s) used to accomplish it and performance measure(s) that will 

document that it has been accomplished.  There is a 1,000 character limit in the Narrative field. 

Applicants may upload additional documentation that supports the objective by using the “upload” 

button.  Please be sure to click the “SAVE” button in the upper right portion of the screen. There is only 

one screen per Outcome to enter all of the information about the objective.  

Applicants should then select the Second Additional Outcome or Objective screen under Objectives and 

Tasks.  Repeat the process above. 

Then find the Third Additional Outcome or Objective screen under Objectives and Tasks and repeat the 

process above.  



TIP: There is a “Go” button on the top right of the Objectives and Tasks screen that allows you to switch 

between the first, second and third objectives. 

 

 

 Click Here 



 
 
Q: In the STEHP RFP, the budget screens are numerous and complex.  Considering that the budget and 

related upload are worth 30 out of 100 points, would OTDA consider holding a conference call to 

provide applicants with more detailed guidance on how to complete the budget forms?  Alternatively, 

would OTDA consider replacing the current forms with a simpler, more user-friendly set of forms? 

A: The budget screens within the Grants Gateway system are standard expenditure-based forms.  

Applicants should complete the budget in the Grants Gateway system for the total STEHP grant amount 

requested.  While OTDA does not anticipate holding a bidders conference call, a video tutorial on how to 

apply for a grant in Gateway is available at http://www.grantsreform.ny.gov/youtube.  The Grantee 

Tutorial: Apply for Funding, includes how to navigate the budget section.  Applicants may also view 

upcoming Webinars as provided by the New York State’s Grant Reform Team.  To register for webinars 

held every Tuesday and Thursday at 9am, please use the link on the following page.   

 

 

 

Narrative 

Name of Objective 

http://www.grantsreform.ny.gov/youtube


Topic: Grantee Applications for Grants Gateway  

Date: Every Tuesday, Thursday, from Tuesday, July 1, 2014 to Thursday, August 28, 2014  

Time: 9:00 am, Eastern Daylight Time (New York, GMT-04:00)  

Meeting Number: 648 266 256  

Meeting Password: meeting1  

 

-------------------------------------------------------  

To join the online meeting 

-------------------------------------------------------  

1. Go to 

https://meetny.webex.com/meetny/j.php?MTID=mfc07938ef605c95bb5276e7e9a512360  

2. If requested, enter your name and email address.  

3. If a password is required, enter the meeting password: meeting1  

4. Click "Join".  

5. Once you are logged in, you will be provided with phone conference call-in information. 

Q: Are there character limitations or maximum in the text boxes when answering the questions? 

A: Character limits vary throughout the STEHP application. Most Program Specific Questions don’t have 

a limit. The Workplan Tasks and Objective Narratives have a 1,000 character limit.  

Q: How do I submit the application? 

A: The “Grantee Quick Start Guide” which can be found at http://www.grantsreform.ny.gov/Grantees 

provides the necessary information on how to submit an application.  Section 9 pertains to submitting 

the application - 

Submit the Application 

Log in to the Grants Gateway with one of the following Grants Gateway roles. 
• Grantee Contract Signatory 
• Grantee System Admin 

Retrieve the completed application by searching for it under the Applications link on top of the 
screen 

 

 
To check your application for errors, click on the “Check for Errors” link under the management 
tools link (see next page). 

https://meetny.webex.com/meetny/j.php?MTID=mfc07938ef605c95bb5276e7e9a512360
http://www.grantsreform.ny.gov/Grantees


 

This will provide you with a list of errors that need to be corrected before submission. 
 
In order to submit your online application, click on the Status Changes link located top of your 
application main page. 

 

 
Click on the APPLY STATUS button located under APPLICATION SUBMITTED 
 

 



Prior to final submission, you will need to certify the agreement as stated. Please read the 
paragraph closely and click on I agree. If you select I DO NOT AGREE, your application will not be 
submitted. Click I AGREE to submit the application. 
 

 

Once your application is submitted you are returned to the Application main page. If you hover 
over the status changes link you will see that there are no available status options at this time. 
 

 



To check the current status of your Application click on the Details link. When you are working 
on your Application, the application status would say “Application in Process”.  
 

 

After you submit your application, the application status in the Details grid would say 
“Assignment of Reviewers” Congratulations! This status means you have successfully submitted 
an application. 
 

 

Budget 

Q: We are a present (If this is our question, use current instead of present) recipient of STEHP 

funding.  We apply the funding under two categories Street Outreach and Emergency Shelter.  The funds 

are used to off-set the cost of salary and benefits for the Street Outreach Worker under the first 

category.  Funds are also used to off-set the cost of salary and benefits for the Shelter Director.  Both of 

these positions appear under one budget or cost center which is our shelter for Runaway and Homeless 

Youth.  On pages 8 & 9 of the instructions it appears that an ineligible expense for Street Outreach is 

salary of any personnel related to Emergency Shelter.  Under Emergency Shelter, ineligible expenses are 



for salary of personnel related to Street Outreach.  Can we still request funds to offset the salary and 

fringe of these two staff members under this round of STEHP funding?  

A: Yes, however, even though your program is one program, the STEHP budget should indicate the 

breakdown of where expenses are being applied by category.  In your example this would be by Street 

Outreach and Emergency Shelter.  Your agency may request STEHP funds in support of salaries for staff 

in each category.  However, staff working in the Emergency Shelter capacity may not be paid salary and 

fringe for time spent working on Street Outreach activities under the Emergency Shelter category.  

Q: Do you allow indirect costs? 

Q: In reviewing the RFP, I noted that the allowable administrative/indirect cost for Rapid Rehousing is 

2.5%.  We have a federally approved rate of 20%.  Are programs able to apply a different admin rate? 

A: STEHP allows for administrative costs up to 2.5% of the award.  All administrative costs must be 

itemized and clearly described.   

Q: Is vacation or paid time off (PTO) considered part of the benefit fringe and can be vouchered for? 

A: Benefit time like PTO may be considered under the salary line since such expenditures would be 

supported by payroll documentation if awarded funds.   

Matching Funds 

Q: We will be requesting funding for staffing for an HHAP funded facility. Can the building be used as 

match?  

A: Yes, as stated on page 18 of the STEHP RFP, the value of a building may be used as match. If owned, 

submit the mortgage commitment or an appraisal to document value. If rented, submit a copy of the 

lease.  

Q: Our agency provides Health Home Care Coordination (HH) services. Even though these services are 

reimbursed through Medicaid could these services be considered eligible match resources? Our hope is 

to apply for a street outreach team for assistance in locating and engaging many of the “chronic” 

homeless individuals we need for our HUD Supportive Housing programs. Many of these individuals and 

their level of impairment meet the criteria for HH enrollment so it would be a perfect fit if these services 

met the match requirement. 

Q: Can federal funds be used as a match?  

A: With the exception of Stewart B. McKinney funds (which include Emergency Solutions Grant and 

HEARTH Act funds) other Federal funds may be used as a match to The STEHP.  If an applicant uses other 

Federal funds such as Medicaid as a match, the applicant must ensure the laws governing the match 

funds do not prohibit those funds from being used as match to ESG funds.  Contributions that have been 

or will be counted as satisfying a match to another award may not count toward satisfying the match to 

this award.  



Q: Can the salaries of Supervisory Staff be a part of program match? 

A: Yes, salaries of supervisory staff may be used as match. 

 

Q: Can Leveraging (i.e. In-kind, financial assistance from other programs) be used as Matching Funds? 

A: Yes, in-kind contributions and financial assistance dedicated to the program may be used as match.  

More information about the Matching Requirement can be found in ESG regulation 576.201 attached at 

the end of the RFP.  

Q: My first question pertains to the 25% Match.  Is the 25% based on the total request or of the total 

program?  Is it based on an annual basis or the sum of the cumulative 5 years? 

Q: I am writing on behalf of [Agency], which is applying for funding through the OTDA STEHP RFP for our 

Project Home eviction prevention program. We have a question about matching funds: do the funds 

have to be available for all three of the years that we would be funded through OTDA if our proposal is 

successful?  

A:  STEHP’s match requirement is 25% of the annual STEHP budget.  Therefore, if an annual STEHP grant 

request is $100,000 the match requirement would be $25,000.  Applicants are encouraged to fully 

document the availability of all match.  The amount requested and shown in the budget worksheets is 

an annual figure.   As such, the 25% match in the application is an annual match.  Proof of matching 

funds will need to be submitted on an annual basis, and may change during the course of the five year 

period if awarded STEHP funds.  

Q: We would like to use client rent as our match funding; would this be acceptable? If so, what would be 

acceptable documentation of this match funding sources? 

A: Participant rent paid to an applicant may be used to satisfy the matching requirement.  The 

applicant’s financial audit which illustrates this income would be acceptable documentation.  

Programming 

Q: I am a current grantee and will be applying for continued funding. Our program scope will change 

however and we will be requesting funds for an HHAP funded building. The building is currently 

scheduled to be ready for occupancy in late October-November 2014.   The RFP states that planning is 

not an allowable cost – would it be allowable to have staff (who are existing but changing jobs) do 

outreach , develop program paperwork, etc. in the weeks prior to the facility accepting new residents, or 

is this considered planning?  

A: Organizational planning is not allowed as referenced on pages 8-10 of the RFP.  Program planning is 

allowed. Outreach to potential program participants and developing program paperwork are eligible 

activities under STEHP. 



Q: We operate a Drop In Center for runaway and homeless youth. We understand that for the purposes 

of the RFP, Drop In Centers are included under the category of Emergency Shelter. Our question is 

whether our Drop In Center has to provide overnight shelter to be eligible for this funding, or if daytime 

and evening hours would qualify as well? 

A: Drop-in Centers do not have to provide overnight access in order to be eligible for STEHP funding.    

Q: We operate both a Drop In Center for runaway and homeless youth, as well as a Street Outreach 

Program. While these programs provide referral and connection to shelters and housing, we cannot 

always guarantee a positive housing outcome because there is unfortunately just not enough shelter 

slots and housing available in New York City, especially for young people. Our question is whether the 

85% positive housing outcome applies to Drop In Centers and Street Outreach Programs as well? 

A: OTDA is prioritizing programs that demonstrate an 85% positive housing outcome rate as stated on 

page 20 of the RFP.  This prioritization applies to all categories.  Though OTDA understands there are 

barriers to accessing housing in any Street Outreach and Drop-in Center program, the ultimate goal is to 

assist homeless persons attain stable housing. Should an applicant win an award and fall below a 75% 

positive housing outcome rate, OTDA reserves the right to adjust the award amount for future years as 

stated on page 23 of the RFP. 

Q: Please clarify what is required by the monthly case management meetings listed on page 12? Can 

these meetings occur by telephone? 

Q: On pg. 12 of the RFP under sub-section E, Prevention, it states that case management meetings must 

occur at least once per month while the participant is in the Prevention program.  The sentences before 

and after this statement reference ongoing rental assistance and we’re assuming that this requirement 

only applies to cases of ongoing assistance, but would appreciate additional clarity?  Our concern is that 

in cases of one-time rental arrears payments this would be overly burdensome for clients who are 

attempting to navigate work (or other benefits) and housing court already – and such requirements may 

ultimately jeopardize the client’s future ability to pay their rent moving forward. 

A: STEHP does not stipulate how case management meetings must occur, only that they must occur at 

least once per month while serving a participant.  This requirement is pursuant to ESG regulation 

576.401 (e) as attached at the end of the RFP. This requirement applies to any participant receiving any 

kind of service under Rapid Re-housing and Prevention. The purpose is to increase housing stability. If a 

person has been discharged, or a case is closed, the case management meetings are not required to 

continue.  

Q: On page 17, it suggests that legal service providers are not required to upload into HMIS. Can you 

clarify the HMIS requirement for STEHP prevention legal service providers?  

A: Domestic violence and legal services providers are not required to participate in HMIS as indicated on 

page 17.  However, such providers are required to use a comparable database as per ESG regulations 

576.107 (a) (3) and 576.400 (f). Regulations are included as an attachment at the end of the RFP.  



Q: Where can we confirm whether we are in a direct HUD ESG entitlement area?  

A: HUD publishes this information at 

http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/about/budget/budget13 

Click on New York to find your area.  

Q: Can you clarify whether housing must be within FMR and Rent Reasonableness if you are providing 

prevention services but NOT providing rental assistance? If you are only providing legal services or 

benefit advocacy, for instance, does FMR and Rent Reasonableness apply?  (I think this is set forth on 

the chart on page 17 but confirmation would be appreciated).  

A: The Fair Market Rent (FMR) and Rent Reasonable standards under the Prevention and Rapid 

Rehousing categories do not apply in instances of providing only housing relocation and stabilization 

services (legal services, benefit advocacy, or financial assistance such as security deposit, last month’s 

rent, or utility payments).  FMR and Rent Reasonable standards under Prevention and Rapid Rehousing 

apply when providing rental assistance (arrears, first month’s rent, ongoing rent payments). More 

information about FMR and Rent Reasonable may be found in ESG regulation 576.106 (d) (1) and (2) 

attached at the end of the RFP.  

Q: Can you specify what you mean by “employment supports?”  What does this include?  

A: For the purposes of the STEHP RFP, “employment supports” are those activities associated with 

employment assistance and job training programs.  Employment assistance may include but is not 

limited to services that assist individuals to: secure employment (screening, assessment, testing, job 

seeking skills, job counseling); acquire learning skills (those used to secure and retain a job, including 

acquisition of licenses and certificates); and/or increase earning potential. Job training may include but 

is not limited to classroom, online, computer and on-the-job instruction.   

Q: While I understand from the RFP that salaries are not supported, per se, we have a question as to 

whether the grant would support paying a resident wage which would support maintenance efforts in 

the shelter? The idea is to create a position which a housing resident would fill which would help with 

maintenance/turnover, offer job/work experience and after 6 months, would earn the [agency] Housing 

Director’s recommendation for competitive employment.  The residents would be appointed housing 

advisors to the [agency] and will use 1 hour of their work time offering suggestions to the housing 

Director for operation improvements. We see this as falling under eligible activities as 'shelter 

maintenance costs' but wanted to check with you before we pursue it further. 

A: Salaries are supported in every category of STEHP as stated in the Section VI of the RFP. Any bona fide 

employee of your organization may be paid for time spent on programming related to that specific 

category such as Rapid Re-housing or Prevention.  Maintenance in Shelters and Transitional Housing 

may be performed by your employees or by contracted companies for which you may then claim 

reimbursement. If awarded STEHP funds, from your example, the housing resident position may only be 

http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/about/budget/budget13


claimed if the person is being paid and your agency has payroll documentation which supports the 

claim.  

Q: Regarding Eligible Emergency Shelter expenses, bullet point 6 (page 9):  Must a participant be 

receiving all listed services (transportation, job placement and job training) to be eligible for child care 

services or does receiving at least one of the listed services qualify a participant to receive child care 

service? 

A: Pursuant to STEHP and ESG regulations, as long as the parent is staying in the shelter, child care is an 

eligible expense while the parent is receiving a service and it is not appropriate for the child to attend.  

Example: The parent attends job training every Tuesday and Thursday from 1-4pm.  Child care is eligible 

during the time it takes for the parent to take the bus to training, be at training, and arrive back at the 

shelter.  There is additional information on this eligible expense in the ESG regulations, 576.102 (a) (1) 

(ii) attached at the end of the RFP. 

Q: Is there any change to the stipulation that a grantee may not use STEHP Rapid Rehousing (RR) or 

Homelessness Prevention (HP) to subsidize the rent/security for properties that the grantee 

owns/operates?   We understand the potential conflict, but our organization is a large provider of 

affordable housing and it is unfortunate that STEHP clients are unable to access it.   

Q: Can a program participant be placed in an agency's own housing stock as long as the funds to cover 

the rent come from somewhere else? 

A: Placement of participants into an applicant’s own housing stock, or providing financial/rental 

assistance while in an applicant’s own housing stock are prohibited in the Rapid Rehousing and 

Prevention categories as stated on pages 11 and 13 of the RFP. 

Q: I noted in this year’s HUD registration that Rapid Rehousing Models must serve families with 

children.  Does this apply to clients served under this RFP? 

A: No, Rapid Rehousing models under this RFP may serve singles and/or families.  

Q: Under the emergency shelter funding category, it states that allowable expenses are activities that 

will assist in obtaining emergency housing”. We are envisioning a program in which our shelter staff 

assist our residents in obtaining housing by helping them access services, find safe suitable housing, 

etc.   Our goal would be to get them out of shelter and into permanent housing as soon as is possible. 

We are also playing with the idea of offering assistance with security deposits and the first month’s rent, 

provided that they are not eligible to receive these funds from other sources.  Are these activities that 

will assist in obtaining permanent housing and thus fundable in that category, or are they rapid re-

housing activities?  If they are rapid re-housing activities, can the rapid re-housing staff person be based 

at the emergency shelter with the understanding that his/her role is to be actively helping residents find 

suitable housing? I understand that if these activities are considered rapid re-housing there would have 

to be habitability inspections and so on.  



A: For the purposes of STEHP, the proposed activities in your example may fit in either category.  While a 

homeless person is staying at a shelter/transitional housing facility, s/he may be assisted for a maximum 

of 30 days with Rapid Rehousing case management (housing search, communicating with potential 

landlords, habitability inspection, FMR/Rent Reasonable determination, and benefit advocacy).   A Rapid 

Rehousing Case Manager may be based at the shelter and paid for with Rapid Rehousing funds. Rapid 

Rehousing funds may also pay for security deposits, first/last month’s rent and on-going rental 

assistance. Once the person moves into permanent housing, the 24-month time limit in a three year 

period is initiated. OTDA expects Rapid Rehousing programs to assist participants for at least six months 

with case management after obtaining permanent housing. Case management meetings must occur at 

least monthly while on the Rapid Rehousing case load.   

Case management to obtain permanent housing is also an eligible expense under the Emergency 

Shelter/Transitional Housing categories, but financial and rental assistance are not eligible expenses in 

those categories.  

Q: We are a community-based organization in the South Bronx that has operated successful 

homelessness prevention and re-housing programs in the past. We would really appreciate it if you 

could let us know if you are expecting applicants to provide services under every category or if 

applicants can select from among the categories (i.e. rapid re-housing and prevention, in our case) 

which ones they would like to offer. If the latter is possible, our next question would be whether there is 

a funding limit or a maximum cost-per-client for the program.  

A: Applicants may apply for STEHP funds under one or more of the eligible categories.  Applicants need 

not provide services under every category.  Funding limits are outlined on pages 20 and 21 of the RFP.  

OTDA anticipates $15.3 million to be made available statewide.  The limit for any one applicant not 

providing NYCFAA activities is 2.7% of the total available.   

Q: Can the grant be used to secure 1st month’s rent, security to get into housing or rental assistance or a 

portion of the funds? 

A: Applicants serving an eligible population may request STEHP funds in support of security, first 

month’s rent and/or rental assistance under the Rapid Rehousing and Prevention categories.    

Q: Are you looking at the creation of a job center or job coaching? 

A: OTDA is prioritizing Rapid Rehousing and Prevention programs which offer employment supports or 

training for participants, or provide a link to those supports. Any linkage must be documented with a 

Memorandum of Understanding.   

Q: If we were to apply for a street outreach team would the cost of any temporary shelter, boarding 

room, hotel/motel be an eligible expense under this grant for the purpose of helping a homeless 

individual transition from the street into one of our permanent supporting housing programs? 

A: Yes, in the scenario described, the cost of temporary emergency shelter such as at a hotel/motel stay 

being paid by your agency would be eligible under the Emergency Shelter category, not the Street 



Outreach category.  You may submit an application that demonstrates Street Outreach and Emergency 

Shelter activities together, but please request funds under the correct categories (as described on pages 

8-14).  

Q:  Can STEHP funding for a street outreach team be used to assist individuals with initially securing and 

furnishing an apartment (i.e. can we pay security  deposit, 1st month’s rent, some modest apartment 

furnishings) to help someone transition to an apartment just until they can be enrolled in a more 

permanent program. I would anticipate assistance of this type being a 1-time form of assistance for a 

limited number of individuals. 

A: STEHP funding can be used to assist homeless individuals secure an apartment with security deposit, 

first month’s rent, on-going rental assistance, and utility payments under the Rapid Rehousing category.  

Furnishings for participant-leased apartments are not an eligible expense under any STEHP category. 

Applicants may submit an application that demonstrates Street Outreach and Rapid Rehousing activities 

together, but please request funds under the correct categories (as described on pages 8-14).  Please be 

advised that OTDA expects Rapid Rehousing programs to serve participants for a minimum of six months 

with at least case management, and case management meetings must occur at least monthly.  

Q: Is the use of funds for shelter limited to existing or can it be used toward a new shelter. 

A: STEHP funds for emergency shelters as described on pages 8 and 9 of the RFP may be used for 

existing and/or new shelters.  

Q: To receive maximum points for 85% success rate, under the LIVING DESTINATIONS chart, do group 

homes or other institutional care count as a success? 

A:  For the purposes of STEHP, Positive Housing outcome shall mean discharging to an equally stable or 

more stable housing situation as described on page 25 of the RFP.  A program may define positive and 

negative discharges for OTDA’s consideration.  In some instances an institutional discharge may be 

positive such as a group home while other institutional discharges are negative such as prison. Proposals 

will be judged on the criteria listed on page 19 of the RFP. 

Q: Six months after the close of the case, what documentation or information is required from the client 

to show still in the same housing? 

A: Page 26 of the STEHP RFP explains the sole purpose of a six-month follow-up is to contact those who 

have been discharged to determine their housing status. A program may choose how to contact former 

participants and record the housing status data.  

Q: Under a PREVENTION award, if an legal services eviction case is closed with successful outcome, and 

under other funding  another type of case is opened for the same client, does the six month period start 

at the closed date of the eviction case?   



A: If a STEHP Prevention case is closed (the participant is discharged), the STEHP six- month follow-up is 

performed six months after discharge from the STEHP program whether or not the client is receiving 

other kinds of services.  

Q: Can we request money for existing employee salaries/ operating costs for the emergency shelter? 

A: Yes, applicants may request funds for existing employee salaries in all categories as long as the 

request does not supplant or replace existing public funding used for ongoing activities.  Applicants are 

encouraged to thoroughly justify the program and need for STEHP funds.  

Q: This agency operates an intensive residential treatment program for homeless individuals with co-

occurring Severe and Persistent Mental Illness and Substance Abuse Disorder with an average lengths of 

stay between 6 – 12 months.  When ready to discharge, the most appropriate housing programs in the 

area have significantly long wait lists.  Often their move to independent housing with less than optimum 

services, fail, and the individuals will cycle back into the homeless system.  We would propose the 

residents who are no longer appropriate for the intensive treatment program described above move 

into a STEHP transitional program.  After stabilization in STEHP program, the participant’s apartment 

would become their permanent home as they exit the STEHP program. This would be moving residents 

from one Transitional Housing program to a Transition-in-place program, would this be an eligible 

program for this grant? 

A: As described, the program is eligible. The Rapid Re-housing category allows for a move from 

Transitional Housing to a participant-leased apartment. Eligible expenses are described on pages 10 and 

11 of the STEHP RFP.  The Transitional Housing category allows for a move from Transitional Housing to 

an agency-owned or agency-leased apartment. Eligible expenses are described on pages 9 and 10 of the 

RFP.   

Q:  Our organization is considering providing direct rental arrears and utility arrears assistance to our 

clients, which we have not done before.  What limitations are attached to providing assistance? What 

type of back-up documentation would be required for these services? 

A: Rental and utility arrears are eligible expenses under the Rapid Rehousing and Prevention categories 

described on pages 10-13 of the STEHP RFP. Direct payments to participants are not allowed.  Payments 

must be made to landlords or utility companies. OTDA follows ESG regulations attached at the end of 

the RFP.  Regulations 576.103, 576.104, 576.105 and 576.106 further describe limitations. 

Documentation of Eligibility is described on pages 15 and 16 of the RFP.  

Q:  Can assisting a client secure back utility arrears be a “stand-alone” eviction prevention outcome? We 

see it as an outcome of both the approved activities of benefit/entitlement advocacy and the provision 

of services to assist with participant success in permanent housing. 

A: Utility arrears payments are eligible under the Rapid Rehousing and Prevention categories. For the 

purposes of STEHP, if it is determined that a household only needs arrears paid to gain housing stability, 

it may be the only service provided.  



Q: Pertaining to the case management component of rapid-rehousing; Can case management be done 

by another program if it applies to that program?  For example, if you receive a referral and it is a 

domestic violence case, can that program provide the case management piece? 

A: Yes, another entity may be responsible for the case management. This should be clearly explained in 

the proposal.  

Q: On page 13 of the STEHP RFP, for the New York City FEPS Application Assistance (NYCFAA) 

component, it states that “families with children who are receiving, or are eligible to receive assistance 

under the NYS Family Assistance Program or Safety Net Assistance Program and have a court proceeding 

against them for an eviction for non-payment of rent are eligible to receive these services.”  Is it the 

intent of the RFP to limit eligibility for NYCFAA services to only those families who meet these narrow 

criteria?  We are a current NYCFAA provider and we  currently serve a broader range of clients, 

including, but not limited to, families who are tenants of multi-family dwellings that are in foreclosure, 

families who have received a vacate order, families facing Holdover proceedings in Housing Court, 

families in need of emergency move assistance, and families seeking FEPS restoration applications.  

Under the current RFP, will we be allowed to serve this broader range of clients? 

Q: On page 16 of the STEHP RFP, it states that for NYCFAA activities, awardees must obtain written 

referrals documenting eviction proceedings from the Housing Court.  This documentation has not been 

required of NYCFAA grantees in the past.  Would documented evidence of a court case – such as a 

petition or a stipulation – be sufficient to meet the requirement in the current RFP?  In non-court cases, 

would evidence of risk of homelessness – such as documented loss of benefits or proof of a foreclosure 

action – be sufficient? 

A: Income-qualifying families with court involvement are the target population for NYCFAA. OTDA 

expects that the primary source of referrals for NYCFAA will be Housing Court and HRA’s Homelessness 

Diversion Unit. Referrals should take the form of court related paperwork, or documentation from HRA 

at the time of initial intake. A petition, stipulation or hold-over are sufficient evidence of a court 

proceeding. Diversion services to keep families out of FEPS are eligible. NYCFAA participants currently 

being served under STEHP would remain eligible for services under this procurement. 

Q: On the Program Specific Questions Screen, Question 16 asks applicants to “summarize current 

homelessness prevention and supportive services in the community.  Identify the names of 

programs/agencies that provide these services and the targeted populations for these services.”  We are 

a New York City applicant and are applying to provide NYC FEPS Application Assistance.  Does Question 

16 call for us to identify ONLY those providers offering NYC FEPS Application Assistance under STEHP or 

is it a broader question about any agency providing FEPS assistance?  Alternatively, is the question 

seeking the names of any homelessness prevention providers, FEPS or otherwise? 

A: Program Specific Question #16 states “Summarize current homelessness prevention and supportive 

services in the community. Identify the names of programs/agencies that provide these services and the 

targeted populations for these services.” NYCFAA is one component of Prevention activities in NYC. The 



question is broader than NYCFAA.  Applicants are encouraged to thoroughly and completely answer 

each question in the STEHP application.  

Q: We currently provide NYCFAA activities under an existing STEHP contract.  On page 13 of the new 

RFP, it states that we will be required to submit a completed FEPS application within those 10 days.  In 

practice, this is often not possible, such as in cases involving clients who are under sanction, clients who 

need to come up with a portion of the back rent and other situations.  Would OTDA consider changing 

the current RFP requirement to submit a completed FEPS application within 10 days whenever 

practicable? 

A: OTDA would prefer that the FEPS application be completed within the 10 day time frame. However, 

OTDA recognizes that factors may exist which would make such time frames impossible. OTDA will 

accept the submission of a Service Plan within 10 days in those instances where it is not possible to get a 

completed application in the 10 day time frame. 

Q: On pg. 16 of the RFP under section VIII (Documentation of Client Eligibility), it states that there must 

be a rental assistance agreement between the funded agency, participant, and landlord when providing 

prevention and rapid re-housing assistance.  Many landlords who are trying to evict their tenants are 

unwilling to cooperate in providing or participating in such documentation as it may be in the landlord’s 

financial interests to evict the family (particularly in cases of rent stabilization or rent-controlled 

tenants).  Our experience in providing prevention assistance has shown that a court stipulation is more 

helpful in preventing homelessness, as it is more enforceable and legally binding.  During the last STEHP 

contract we given guidance that a rental assistance agreement is not required for one-time rental 

arrears payments, rather it’s only required in cases of ongoing assistance.  Can you please provide clarity 

if this requirement remains the same? 

Q: Rental Assistance agreements described on page 16 apply only when providing Rental Assistance 

according to the definition on page 26 of the RFP, which includes arrears and on-going rental payments.    

OTDA follows the ESG regulation 576.106 (attached at the end of the RFP).  Such agreements have been 

identified as a best practice to ensure the landlord doesn’t evict the participant after the investment in 

arrears and rental payments.   

Required Submissions 

Q: Is there a place where you are asking for linkage agreements and letters of support other than the 

one from Continuum of Care (COC) and County DSS?  If so, where is it in the application? 

Q: Is there an opportunity to submit linkage letters/letters of support?  If so, how can we do so?  Will 

these be counted in the scoring?  

Q: Are Linkage letters required for this application? I did not see a place to upload them. 

Q: Do you require linkage agreements for support services to be provided to our STEHP clients? Will 

additional points be granted for letters of support? 



A: General letters of support and linkage letter agreements are not required but may be uploaded to a 

program file at a later date if awarded funds.   A memorandum of understanding (MOU) may be 

uploaded in response to Program Specific Questions #25 and #34 if it supports the specific linkage asked 

for in each question.  Local Social Services District letters of support and Continuum of Care letters of 

support may be uploaded in the relevant section of the STEHP application.  

Q: May our Executive Director sign the Agency Agreement, Application Certifications, Continuum of 

Care, Participation in HMIS, and Good Faith Drug & Alcohol-free Facilities forms? 

A: Your Executive Director may sign the Agency Agreement, the Applicant Certification, the Participation 

in HMIS, and the Good Faith Drug and Alcohol free forms.  The DSS Certification should be signed by a 

representative from your local DSS.  The Continuum of Care Certification should be signed by a 

representative from your local Continuum of Care.  

Q: On page 36, we must get local DSS approval. In the past, in New York City, we were able to use a 

letter from HRA or from DHS. Please confirm whether that applies to this RFP.  

Q: The STEPHP RFP requires certification from the local social services district. In NYC, this agency is the 

Human Resources Administration. However, the agency which is responsible for homeless services in 

NYC is the Department of Homeless Services. Will a certification from the Department of Homeless 

Services satisfy the requirement to have certification from the social services district, or do we need to 

get that from the Human Resources Administration? 

Q: The STEHP RFP requires applications to submit a “Local Social Services District Certification of 

Approval”.  In New York City, the Local Social Services District is represented both by the New York City 

Human Resources Administration (HRA) and by the New York City Department of Homeless Services 

(DHS).  For the purposes of this RFP, which agency should we get to certify approval of our proposal, 

HRA or DHS?  Does it matter which agency we use? 

A: NYC applicants may submit approval from HRA or DHS. 

HMIS 

Q: Are licensing and HMIS operations costs that can be claimed above and beyond a STEHP grantees FTE 

employee costs for data entry and monitoring?   

A: Yes, all HMIS related expenses which must be performed for STEHP are eligible expenses.   

Q: In relation to HMIS is there a suggested ‘reasonable cost’ cap that OTDA might recommend on total 

(percentage of grant request) budget? 

A: OTDA has not suggested a reasonable cost cap for HMIS related expenses. Expenses differ statewide 

depending on many factors.  All costs should be justified in the budget proposal. STEHP is an 

expenditure based line-item reimbursement grant program.  As with all expenses related to STEHP, for 



those applicants awarded funds, reimbursement is only provided with sufficient evidence of expenses 

being incurred.   

Q: In relation to OTDA’s Data Warehouse project, would the Data Warehouse obligations be a further 

validation and inclusion item for STEHP HMIS costs? 

A: Data Warehouse expenses that can be directly supported by an applicant’s expense record for STEHP- 

related activities are eligible under STEHP.  All costs must be justified in the budget proposal. Proof of 

the expense must be submitted when claiming.   

Q: Is the applicant the entity that signs the Required Form – Participation in HMIS – that appears on 

page 38?  CARES stated at a meeting today that they needed to sign off on HMIS for STEHP although the 

form appears to be for the applicant to acknowledge understanding of the responsibility to enter data in 

HMIS.  

A: The applicant should sign and upload the Participation in HMIS Required Form on page 38.  

Selection and Award Process 

Q: Is there a maximum amount an organization may apply for under each component of the RFP and/or 

is there a funding cap for an entire application?  If so, can you please clarify the parameters? 

Q: Is there a maximum grant award per agency per fiscal year? 

Q: On page 20 it states that no one agency will be awarded more than 2.7% of the total funds available 

in STEHP.  Is this 2.7% for our region or 2.7% of the $15.3 million funding available?  

Q: While the RFP states that proposals will be judged on "overall cost reasonableness and effectiveness 

of the proposed project", is there an expectation that a successful grant application will not exceed a 

specific budget ceiling?  

Q: Are there limits to the award amount in regards to the support of food under the emergency shelter 

category? 

Q: What is the maximum dollar amount of STEHP monies that can be granted to a NYC agency that is not 

providing NYCFAA services? 

Q: On page 20 of the RFP it states that, “no one agency will be awarded more than 2.7% of total funds 

available…” (non-NYCFAA).  Is this 2.7% of the anticipated funds of $15.3 million? Or is this 2.7% of the 

projected distribution of funds (chart on pg.15)? 

A: OTDA anticipates making $15.3 million available for the first year under this STEHP RFP.  The funding 

limits for the entire award per agency are described on pages 20 and 21 of the RFP. An agency that does 

not propose NYCFAA activities is limited to 2.7% of the funds, or $413,100. An agency proposing NYCFAA 

activities is limited to 6.2 % of the funds, or $948,600. A NYC applicant that does not propose NYCFAA 



activities is limited to 2.7% of the funds available. Other than those state caps, there are no limits within 

categories.  

Q: Since this is a five year grant and each agency is limited in the RFP to 2.7% of the funds, I am 

wondering:  If our true needs exceeded that amount would we get points off for applying for more? We 

would like to add a program (i.e. Rapid Rehousing) but would definitely be over the limit but in future 

years the funds could be available from the State. 

A: The award limits on pages 20 and 21 of the RFP should be noted when developing your request.   

Q: Is there a maximum amount that any one agency can ask for with a combined application?  [Agency] 

and [Agency] are going to work together on the STEHP grant and operate our shelter programs, our 

rapid rehousing programs, our prevention programs, and adding a street outreach service this year. 

A: The lead agency is subject to the limits described on pages 20 and 21 of the RFP even though funds 

will be passed through to another.   

Q: Can an agency be a sub-contractor on one application – collaborating with two other agencies  AND 

have  its own separate (independent) application?  

A: As long as services are not being duplicated among applications, it is acceptable to be a sub-

contractor on a STEHP application and submit your own STEHP application.  Please be aware of the 

award limits to any one agency are on pages 20 and 21 of the RFP. 

Q: Is there any information about anticipated average award amounts? 

A: OTDA has no information on average award amounts. There is no way to determine this until 

proposals are submitted, judged and awarded.  

Q: Clarification is requested regarding the 7th bullet on page 20. More specifically, the last sentence 

states that no priority shall be given to applicants that serve areas which received $225,000 in ESGP 

funds directly from HUD.  Are agencies that currently indirectly receive ESG funding through a municipal 

agency eligible to apply for STEHP? If so, can agencies that receive ESG funding through a municipal 

agency use such funding to fulfill the Matching Funds requirement? 

A: Agencies that receive ESG funds from municipalities are also eligible to apply for STEHP.  Services and 

reimbursement must not be duplicated.  

Agencies may NOT use other ESG funds to fulfill the matching funds requirement of the STEHP grant. 

Q: Is there any further information you can provide regarding how Outreach, Emergency Shelter, 

Transitional Housing, and Rapid Rehousing components will be prioritized?   

Q: Will an application that seeks funding in multiple categories (e.g., Rapid Re-Housing and NYCFAA) be 

considered stronger proposal than a proposal that seeks funding in only a single category (e.g., NYCFAA 

alone)? 



Q: Our organization currently receives STEHP funding for a transitional shelter we operate for women 

with mental health issues; we want to apply to renew and expand funding for this site. We also are 

interested in applying for new funding to support Rapid-Rehousing and aftercare for residents of the 

separate family shelters we operate. Can you please advise: would it be preferable for us to submit two 

separate applications for Transitional Housing and Rapid-Rehousing, or should we submit both requests 

in one application? If we submit one application, is it possible that OTDA would fund just one category? 

Is there an approach that would make us more competitive? 

Q: If submitting for multiple service categories, are they judged and looked upon as separate proposal 

components, or 1 large proposal.  In other words, is it possible to be granted funding for 

some categories and denied others in a proposal?   

A: Agencies proposing services in multiple categories should submit one application; applications will be 

evaluated as a whole. OTDA will be following what is written in the Selection Process, Section XI of the 

RFP on pages 18-22 when it reviews and prioritizes applications.  Priorities can be found on pages 19-20.  

Categorically, OTDA is prioritizing proposals that demonstrate NYCFAA activities.  It is also prioritizing 

programs that demonstrate Rapid Rehousing from Street Outreach, Shelter and Transitional Housing 

programs. It is possible to be granted funding for some categories and not others under certain 

conditions.   The Projected Distribution of Funds can be found in Section VII of the RFP.  

Q: Are you able to tell us if the STEHP service component priorities have changed since FY 2012/13? 

A: The last STEHP RFP was released in 2011. There are differences in priorities under the 2014 RFP.  

OTDA will be following guidelines established in the 2014 RFP when it prioritizes applications.  Priorities 

can be found in the Selection Process, Section XI of the RFP. 

Q: If an applicant’s target area includes a mix of high priority and no priority areas, will the applicant lose 

priority points as opposed to applying for a completely high priority area? 

A: Applicants proposing to serve a mix of high and low priority areas will receive credit for the high 

priority area.  

Q: Has OTDA identified any under-served areas as described on page 21 of the RFP?  And, if so, what are 

they? 

A: Underserved areas have not been pre-determined by OTDA.  

MWBE 

Q: We are not going to request funds for supplies or be seeking vendors in this new RFP. Are we still 

required to upload a signed document M/WBE Goal requirements form? 

Q: Is the Contractors M/WBE Goals Requirements Certification of Good Faith required of all applicants? 



Q: The application requires certifications from MWBE partners. What if we do not yet have agreements 

with such vendors for this project but can certify that in good faith we will seek to have them participate 

where possible. How can we obtain certification from MWBEs if we don't yet have the award? 

A: M/WBE forms are only applicable under this STEHP RFP if you are requesting discretionary funds, 

(those funds for which there is an opportunity to purchase from a certified M/WBE vendor). Agencies 

should complete and upload the MWBE documents if you are requesting funds for supplies, equipment 

and contractual services (except for contractual services with not-for-profit organizations). Identification 

of M/WBE providers from whom you could purchase is all that is expected at time of application.  

If you are not requesting discretionary funding, you do not need to complete or upload the MWBE 

forms.  

Q: If we are already working with M/WBE businesses, are we required to solicit additional M/WBE 

suppliers for the purposes of this grant application? 

A: If discretionary funds are requested under your STEHP proposal, any NYS certified M/WBE vendor can 

be utilized.  

Q: Do the MWBE contractor requirements apply to OTPS costs that will be paid by the match or only to 

direct grant funds? 

A: M/WBE goals only apply to STEHP grant funds.  

Q: If a project is applying for only Personal and Travel funding, do they need to submit any of the 

M/WBE part of the application. 

A: No, if only applying for personal and travel funds, the M/WBE forms are not required.  

Miscellaneous 

Q: Can you submit a Multi-County Proposal? 

A: Yes, multi-county proposals are acceptable. 

Q: How does reimbursement take place?  Lump sum payment after contract execution, reimbursement 

by reporting period after submission of expenditures, reimbursement that is performance based, or 

some other method? 

Q: Given that an 85% success rate is attained by the awarded agency, can it bill for the hours expended 

on the 15% of cases that were not successful? 

A: After contract execution, quarterly reimbursement is requested based on submitting proof of actual 

expenses incurred (including staff time spent on any potential and existing STEHP cases) and a program 

report.  



Q: If an agency describes work in specific counties in its service area in the RFP submission and is 

awarded, during the subsequent renewal periods is it allowed to add in or replace with other counties in 

its service area? Must the original counties be part of the renewal plan? 

Q: A select number of service providers within our local Continuum of Care (CoC) would like to apply for 

and use a portion of their requested rapid rehousing funds for a pilot concept (that meets the guidelines 

for rapid rehousing).  If they are awarded the STEHP funds and the pilot results in positive outcomes 

after the first two years, would other service providers in the Continuum of Care (CoC) be able to 

request a change of use for a portion of their awarded rapid rehousing funds so they could utilize the 

piloted concept for the remaining three years of their STEHP contracts? 

A: If awarded funds, OTDA expects work to be performed as described in the proposal for all years of the 

contract.  Budget modifications and scope of work changes require review and approval.   

Q: Will we have access to the proposal and the forms after it has been submitted? 

A: Applicants will be able to read or view their STEHP application, but will not be able to make 

modifications to the proposal after it has been submitted.  

Q: If a project is not providing Rapid Rehousing and/or Prevention services should they provide an 

answer to question 25 in the "Proposed STEHP Program" section of the application. 

A: An answer is required for this question. If an applicant is not proposing Rapid Rehousing and/or 

Prevention services, please state this in the answer space provided.  
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Webinar Topic: Grantee Applications for Grants Gateway  
 

This approximately one-hour webinar will show applicants how to find and apply for a grant opportunity 
in the NYS Grants Gateway system.  

 
Date: Every Tuesday and Thursday until August 28, 2014  

Time: 9:00 am, Eastern Daylight Time (New York, GMT-04:00)  
Meeting Number: 648 266 256  

Meeting Password: meeting1  

 

To join the online meeting  
1. Go to https://meetny.webex.com/meetny/j.php?MTID=mfc07938ef605c95bb5276e7e9a512360  
2. If requested, enter your name and email address.  

3. If a password is required, enter the meeting password: meeting1  

4. Click "Join".  
5. Once you are logged in, you will be provided with phone conference call-in information.  

 
YouTube Video of this Topic  
 
We have also created a video that is very similar to this webinar, which can be found here:  
http://youtu.be/Z-_xrOcGf8c  

 
Add to Your Calendar  
 

Add this meeting to your calendar program: 
https://meetny.webex.com/meetny/j.php?MTID=m6beab407c22bf79c2551476d46f46aa3   

 

System Setup and Test  
 

If you haven’t attended a WebEx meeting before and would like to verify that it will work on your system, 
please click on the following link at least 1 hour before the start of the webinar. 

http://www.webex.com/test-meeting.html.   

 
Grants Gateway Support  
 

For support relating to the Grants Gateway system, please contact the Grants Gateway team at 
grantsgateway@budget.ny.gov.  
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